HATFIELD BOROUGH
PLANNING COMMISSION

October 4, 2021

L B LEEN e
: P,
Y 11111
e | » | . ..'.....'. | AI'- !

KENNETH V. FARRALL, CHAIR
LARRY BURNS, VICE CHAIR
JOHN KROESSER, MEMBER

MICHELLE KROESSER, MEMBER
LAWRENCE G. STEVENS, MEMBER

MICHAEL J. DEFINIS, BOROUGH MANAGER



401 S. Main Street
P.O.Box 190
Hatfield, PA 19440

Phone:
215-855-0781

Fax:
215-855-2075

Email:
admin@
hatfieldborough.com

Website:
www.hatfieldborough.com

Borough of Hatfield

Montgomery County, Pennsylvania

PLANNING COMMISSION
October 4. 2021 7:00PM

Borough Council Chambers

Call to Order / Roll Call

[a—

e

Larry Burns
Michelle Kroesser

Kenneth Farrall
Lawrence G. Stevens John Kroesser

Motion to Approve the October 4, 2021 Agenda
Motion to Approve the June 14, 2021 Meeting Minutes

52/60 N. Market Street Minor Subdivision Sketch Plan Preliminary
Presentation

Old Business:

A. Edinburgh Square Land Development Update
B. Bennett’s Court Update

C. 43 Roosevelt Update

D. Codification

New Business:
A. Small Wireless Ordinance Update
B. ZHB Legal Notice

Action Items:

Next Meeting Monday November 1, 2021 7:00PM

Motion to Adjourn.



2. Motion of Approve the June 14, 2021
Meeting Minutes



Planning Commission Meeting Minutes June 14, 2021

PLANNING COMMISSION
June 14, 2021 7:00PM
Meeting Minutes
This Meeting was Recorded

ROLL CALL

(X) Kenneth V. Farrall, Chair
(X) Larry Burns, Vice Chair
(X) John Kroesser

(X) Michelle Kroesser

(X) Lawrence G. Stevens

The record shows that five members of the Planning Commission were present along
with Borough Manager Michael J. DeFinis, Borough Public Information Coordinator,
Lindsay Hellmann, and Borough Engineer Chad Camburn.

1. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:
Motion to Approve the June 14, 2021 Planning Commission Meeting Agenda

Motion: A motion was made by Larry Stevens to Approve
the Agenda of June 14, 2021 Planning
Commission Meeting Agenda. The motion was
seconded by Larry Burns and unanimously
approved with a vote of 5-0.

2. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES:
Motion to Approve the Minutes of the May 3, 2021 Planning Commission Meeting.

Motion: A motion was made by Michelle Kroesser to Approve the

May 3, 2020 Meeting Minutes. The motion was
seconded by Larry Burns. The Motion was unanimously
approved with a vote of 5-0.

3. 43 Roosevelt Final Land Development Presentation

Mr. Herling, the developer for the project and his Engineer Jason Smeland addressed the
Planning Commission and gave an overview of the proposed development highlighting
the previous discussions on access to the property, landscaping, and stormwater
management.



Planning Commission Meeting Minutes June 14, 2021

Chairman Farrall asked if anyone had any questions or concerns pertaining to any
comments in the review letters. Jason Smeland the Engineer for the developer stated they
will all be “will comply” but wanted to address a concern raised by the Traffic Engineer
pertaining to the sight distance for the driveway and stated that they will work to improve
the sight distance from the driveway with possible landscaping adjustments with a
comment on the plans to meet the satisfaction of the Traffic Engineer. Chad Camburn the
Borough Engineer added that the solution is not ideal but it is an improvement from the
current plans to open up the sight lines.

Chad Camburn added that he was worked with the Engineer over the past few weeks on
this project, specifically the stormwater management design, and it turned out really well
with being able to separate the properties to function independently to decease any
overflow.

Chairman Farrall asked for any other comments from the submitted review letters and
stated that all of the items listed will be a “will comply”, is that correct? Jason Smeland,
stated Yes, with exception to the Traffic Engineer in which a comment will be noted on

the plans.

Manager DeFinis stated that a few things to note are the developer must make the
revisions on the plans, have a stormwater management report, televise the existing
sanitary sewer lateral and replace if needed, note the plans for the Traffic Engineer, demo
permit, developers’ agreement, intersection improvements to the arch noted at Roosevelt
and Girard, approved sewer planning module, and an address that can be recognized in
the County CAD system.

A discussion ensued amongst the Planning Commission regarding these
recommendations for approval and Chairman Farrall stated that this needs to go back to

Council for final approval.

Motion to Consider Granting Final Land Development Approval for the 43 Roosevelt
Subdivision and have the Solicitor Draft a Resolution Identifying all Conditions and

Obligations

Motion: A motion was made by Larry Burns to Approve
Granting Final Land Development Approval for the 43
Roosevelt Subdivision and have the Solicitor Draft a
Resolution Identifying all Conditions and Obligations.
The motion was seconded by Larry Stevens. The Motion
was unanimously approved with a vote of 5-0.

4. Bennetts Court Preliminary Land Development Presentation

Motion: A motion was made by Larry Burns to TABLE the
Bennetts Court Preliminary Land Development Review.



Planning Commission Meeting Minutes June 14, 2021

The motion was seconded by Larry Stevens. The Motion
was unanimously approved with a vote of 5-0.

5. Old Business:
A. Edinburgh Square Land Development Update

Manager DeFinis gave an update on the Edinburgh Square Development and stated that
the developer has requested a release of escrow funds which is under review of the
Engineer. Manager DeFinis added that the Code Enforcement Officer will issue a letter
informing the developer what needs to be done to get the stop work order issued for the
property lifted.

A discussion ensued amongst the Panning Commission and the Borough Engineer what is
specifically needed from the developer for him to move forward with the escrow release

and lifting the atop work order.

B. Codification

Manager DeFinis informed the Planning Commission that the Borough is working
through the legal analysis process of the Codification of the Borough with General Code.
Manager DeFinis told the Planning Commission to look over the code and if there is
anything you want to see modified to please make note and let Jaime Snyder, the
Borough Assistant Manager, know.

C. Sewer Lateral Repair Ordinance / Chapter 18

Manager DeFinis stated that the Borough is considering a Sewer Lateral Repair
Ordinance that would tie into the property transfer certification that the Borough has in
place when a property would go to settlement. Manager DeFinis added that this
Ordinance would require private laterals to be televised and if needed, replaced prior to
settlement. Manager DeFinis stated that this came from the Chapter 94 Reports from DEP
to the Hatfield Township Municipal Authority as a suggestion to help reduce and
eliminate the I1&I and Borough Council has gone through several drafts of this and have
had HTMA and the HTMA Solicitor come in for a presentation on the proposed
Ordinance.

A discussion ensued amongst the Planning Commission regarding this Ordinance and the
addition of updating similar Ordinances in the Borough regulating commercial properties
and / or businesses be mandated to televise every five to ten years.

6. New Business: NONE

7. Action Items: (acted on during 42 Roosevelt Final Land Development Presentation)



Planning Commission Meeting Minutes June 14, 2021

8. Next Meeting Monday, July 12, 2021 7:00PM

9. Motion to Adjourn

Motion:

Respectfully Summitted,

Jaime E. Snyder
Borough Assistant Manager

A motion was made by Larry Stevens to adjourn
the June 14, 2021 Planning Commission Meeting.
The Motion seconded by Larry Burns and
unanimously approved with a vote of 5-0.



3.52/60 N. Market Street Minor Subdivision
Sketch Plan Preliminary Presentation



BURSICH

Memorandum
Date: September 1, 2021
To: Michael J. DeFinis, Hatfield Borough Manager (via email)
CC: Jaime Snyder, Hatfield Borough Assistant Manoger (via email)

Kate Harper, Borough Solicitor (via email)
Mat Traynor, Borough Zoning & Codes Official (via email)

From: Chad E. Camburn, P.E.

Subject: 52/ 60 N. Market Street Minor Subdivision Sketch Plan
Review #1
Bursich Project No.: HAT-01/218216

We have performed a general review of the plan titled Minor Subdivision Sketch Plan for 52 / 60 North
Market Street, prepared by Metz Engineers, dated May 25, 2021 with a latest revision date of July 19,
2021. We offer the following for your consideration:

1. Anote on the plan indicates that, in the event that only Lot 1is constructed, a portion of the
garage will be removed, and the existing concrete floor will be retained, to provide the required
side yard. The concrete floor within the side yard must also be removed.

2. Additional dimensions will be needed to show the width of the drive aisles between the parking
spaces, and the backup areas, on both lots.

3. The proposed common driveway appears to be located within 2 feet from the face of the
existing building. If approved, safety features such as bollards should be provided to protect
the building.

4. Aturning template shall be included to confirm the largest vehicle anticipated to access the
property (garbage truck, delivery vehicle, moving / furniture vehicle, etc.) can safely access
and turn around within the property, and exit the lots onto N. Main Street in a forward motion.

5. The plan shall indicate the number of units in the existing building to confirm the proposed
number of parking spaces is sufficient. The Borough Zoning Officer should determine if
handicap accessible parking and access to the building is required.

6. The size and use(s) of a future building on Lot 2 may be impacted by the number of parking
spaces.

7. Parking lot and accessway lighting will be required.

ENGINEERS, LAND SURVEYORS, LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

2129 E. High Street ! Pottstown, PA 19464

N ANE AT A DY YT (VTR i Gy £
NADT 4020 W 07536 096

P:\HAT-011218216_52-60 N. Market St. Subdivision\Reviews\2021-09-01_52-60 N. Market St. Sketc.li’;;v. 1.docx




10.

12.

13.

52/60 N. Market Street Minor Subdivision Sketch Plan
September 1, 2021
Page 2 of 2

Based on the sketch plan and County taxmap, the property has a direct connection to an
existing alley. If the applicant does not wish to use the alley as a secondary access, plantings or
another type of barrier should be considered to stop unintended vehicular access once the
garage is removed. Buffer and screening plantings may be required.

The sketch planillustrates a potential layout for the two lots when they are built-out. An Existing
Conditions plan should be provided along with a plan that illustrates the site conditions with
only Lot 1improved.

If garbage and recycling will not be picked up at the curb, designated refuse areas, which can

accommodate collection trucks, must be included in the site layout (see Zoning Ordinance
section 27-813 for requirements).

As noted on the plans, a common driveway easement, along with other agreements, will be
required.

We recommend the Borough's Emergency Service providers provide input on the proposed
layout as it pertains to their accessibility and public safety.

Additional comments will be provided with future subdivision and land development
applications.

Please feel free to contact me at 484-941-0418 or chad.camburn@bursich.com with any guestions.



TRANSPORTATION ENGINEERS & PLANNERS

Vi 3 I 2 % A )
(:?-2 M{; N’i AE{{{_} ;ﬂ&%\b{ McMahon Associates, Inc.
sl L . s, 20N 425 Commerce Drive, Suite 200
Fort Washington, PA 19034
P.215.283.9444

mcmahonassociates.com

September 30, 2021 o

e ((.47 !:‘ 5 «if =X E“\\ |
1)) =)

Mr. Michael J. DeFinis i 1
Hatfield Borough 1 sep 30 2021 L
401 South Main Street ‘1{\\\

P.O. Box 190 : ke :
Hatfield, PA 19440 L ATO e

RE: Traffic Engineering Review #1
52/60 N Market Street
Hatfield Borough, Montgomery County, PA
McMahon Project No. 821596.1A

Dear Mr. DeFinis:

As requested, on behalf of Hatfield Borough, McMahon has completed a traffic engineering review of the
proposed development to be located at 52/60 N. Market Street in Hatfield Borough, Montgomery County, PA, It
is our understanding that the proposed development will consist of one new 8,085 sq ft building with the use to
be determined.

The following documents were reviewed in preparation of our review:

= Land Development Plans for 52/60 N. Market Street, prepared by Metz Engineers, revised July 19, 2021,

Based on our review of the submitted documents noted above, McMahon offers the following comments for
consideration by the Borough and action by the applicant.

Plan Review

1. The Turning movements for all vehicles must be provided. The vehicles should be shown to turn into the
driveway from the respective travel lane along N. Market Street.

2. A driveway apron must be provided for the access onto N. Market Street in lieu of the curb returns. The
driveway apron should be designed in accordance with Borough and PennDOT standards and meet ADA
requirements.

3. Pedestrian access should be shown within the site to provide access from the parking lot, buildings, and
sidewalk.

4, The maodifications to access will require a PennDOT Highway Occupancy Permit since N. Market Street is a
state route (S.R. 1003). The Borough must be copied on all plan submissions and correspondence
between the applicant and PennDQT and invited to any and all meetings between these parties.

e e T T T T T T T T T T T T T S S —--,-‘_.—-_,-__.__J-—-_._____. S . ——

L g e e - S L A ST e S ST — i S Tt e i e

Engineering | Planning | Design | Technology
Transportation Solutions Building Better Communi_\ties



Mr, Michael J. DeFinis
September 30, 2021
Page 2 of 2

We trust that this review letter responds to your request and satisfactorily addresses the traffic issues that are
related to the proposed development apparent to us at this time. If you or the Borough have any questions, or
require clarification, please contact me.

Sincerely,

(it Aher —

Anton K. Kuhner, P.E.
Senior Project Manager

BMJ/smd

cc: Jaime Snyder, Borough Assistant Manager (via email)
Chad Camburn, R.E., Bursich Associates, Inc. — Borough Engineer
Kate Harper, Borough Solicitor (via email)
Matthew Traynor, Hatfield Borough Code Enforcement/Zoning Officer (via email)
Reeves Miller, North Penn Real Estate
Jeffrey Wert, P.E., Metz Engineers (Applicant’s Engineer)

1:\eng\HATFIBO1\821596-52 Market\Correspondence\Out\Revisw letter #1 9_30_2021.doc



Borough of Hatfield

Montgomery County, Pennsylvania

BRART

September 2, 2021

Hatfield Vol. Fire Co.

CO: President Dean Mininger
75 North Market

Hatfield, PA 19440

ZONING LETTER

Requested:
A Zoning Letter for the property of 52/60 North Market Street of Hatfield Borough.

52 North Market Street
Hatfield, PA 19440
PID# 09-00-01390-00-5

The Zoning District is CC - Core Commercial
The Use and Occupancy Classification is R2 - Residential occupancies containing
sleeping units or more than two dwelling units where the occupants are primarily

permanent in nature: Apartment Houses

The property is a Nonconforming Use as the property does not meet a Permitted by
Right Use of the CC — Core Commercial District.

Permitted by Right Uses include:
- Multi-family dwellings, in combination with allowed commerecial uses, provided such

401'S. Main Street residential uses shall only be allowed in the CC Distri.ct if located above an allowed
20, Box 190 principal commercial use that shall occupy the entire floor that is closest to the
Hatfield. PA 19440 street level floor at the front of the lot. These dwell}ings may be leased, or be
’ owned in a condominium form of ownership provided there is compliance with

Phone: applicable state law.
2158550781 OiGEs:

- Membership club which shall be limited to meeting facilities and associated
Fax: recreational facilities.
215-855-2075 - Fire, police or ambulance station.

- Dwelling conversions are permitted. However, the existing first floor principal
Email: commercial use in the CC District shall not be converted into a residential dwelling
adffin use. One existing dwelling unit in the CC District shall not be converted into two or

hatfieldborough.com more dwelling units.
Website: A full list of Permitted by Right Uses can be found in Zoning Ordinance §27-2102
www hatfieldborough.com

Page |10f2



Borough of Hatfield

Montgomery County, Pennsylvania

Dimensional and Design Requirements:

Minimum Lot Size: 5,000 square feet

Minimum Lot Width: 30 feet

Maximum Building Coverage of Lot: 75%

Maximum Impervious Coverage of Lot; 90%

Maximum Building Height: 4 Stories or 40 Feet, whichever is more restrictive. A
maximum height of four stories or 60 feet, whichever is more restrictive, shall be
permitted if the applicant provides evidence acceptable to the Borough Fire
Marshall that there will be adequate provisions for outside access and adequate
fire protection measures to allow the taller height.

Minimum Side Yard Setback: An aggregate of 12 feet, but no less than two feet per
side, except three feet along an abutting lot that is primarily occupied by a
business use. No side yard is required for a building that existed prior to the
adoption of this chapter without a conforming side yard.

Minimum Rear Yard Setback: 15 Feet

Front Yard Depth, calculated in accordance with § 27-805: five feet minimum, 10 feet
maximum and no new off-street parking spaces on the lot shall be placed
between the principal building and the street,

If a new principal building is constructed adjacent to Broad Street, Market Street or
Lincoln Avenue, it shall have two or more above ground stories. If this height is
not feasible, then the building shall be constructed with an appearance of having
two or more above ground stories, utilizing features as shown in the Central
Business Design Guidelines.

Hatfield Borough Central Business District Design Guidelines shall be used in the
Central Business District. The Central Business District is generally defined as the
areas fronting on: Main Street; Market Street; Lincoln Avenue East of Main Street
and Broad Street, and situated in the following zoning districts: CC Core

401 S, Main Street Commerecial; C Commercial; and R-3 Residential.

P.0. Box 190

Hatfield, PA 19440

Sincerely,

Phone:

A
215-855-0781 %7’7’”"’”

Matthew J Traynor

Fax: Code & Zoning Enforcement

215-855-2075

Email:
adfiin@
hatfieldborough.com

Website:
: h.
www.hatfieldborough.com Page |2o0f2




4. Old Business:
A. Edinburgh Square Land Development Update



Borough of Hatfield

Montgomery County, Pennsylvania

June 15, 2021

David Caracausa
PO Box 1055
North Wales, PA 19454

RE: EDINBURGH SQUARE CONSTRUCTION

STOP WORK ORDER MEMO

The Stop Work Orders for Lot 1 09-00-01882-01-7, Lot 2 09-00-
01882-00-8, Lot 3 09-00-01882-02-6 and Lot 4 09-00-01882-03-5 will be
removed once Hatfield Borough receives and approves updated Lot Plans
as long as all other obligations are met.

Once updated Lot Plans are approved and the Stop Work Orders are
lifted, site work such as grading and stormwater management installation
can commence and construction of the dwellings. Surveyed as-built
foundation plans will need to be approved prior to framing. E&S controls
and safety fencing must be maintained throughout the construction
process.

Lot Plans to include

o Zoning Data o Grading

o Setback Lines o Driveway Grades
401 S. Main Stree o Dwelling Footprint o E&S Controls
PO. Box 190 o Projection Footprints o Property Address

Hatfield, PA 19440
Please feel free to contact the Hatfield Borough Building Code Official

Phone: at (215) 855-0781 extension 108 with any questions.
215-855-0781
Fax: S:’ ncerely,
215-855-2075 3 7 g
/2 ¥
Email: Matthew J Traynor
admin@ Building Code Official
hatfieldborough.com
Website:

wwwhatfieldborough.com




4. Old Business:
B. Bennetts Court



4. Old Business:
C. 42 Roosevelt Update

-



00450-0242 7.15.2021

HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
RESOLUTION NO. 2021- 143
REGARDING APPLICATION OF ABP INVESTMENTS INC. FOR FINAL
SUBDIVISION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT APPROVAL FOR A FOUR LOT
RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION
43 ROOSEVELT AVENUE IN
HATFIELD BOROUGH

AND NOW, this 21st day of July, 2021, the Borough Council of Hatfield, at a public
meeting, and after extensive reviews of the Plans by the Borough consultants, and Borough
Council, and the Hatfield Borough Planning Commission hereby GRANTS Final Subdivision and
Land Development approval, with conditions, to the Plans of ABP Investments Inc. for a four lot
residential subdivision dated September 10, 2020, last revised April 13,2021 consisting of a Cover
Sheet and Sheets 1 through 7, prepared by Lenape Valley Engineering, Chalfont, PA (“the Plans”)
for ABP Investments, Inc. 775 Penllyn Pike, Blue Bell, PA 19422 (hereinafter “Applicant™) for
the site located in the Borough at 43 Roosevelt Avenue, on a .56 acre parcel in the R- 2 Residential
Zoning District, being TMP # 09-00-00730-00-8, subject to the conditions stated below:

Except as modified herein, the Plans must be revised to comply with this Resolution, the
Borough Engineer’s Review letter from Bursich, dated June 8, 2021, attached hereto as Exhibit A,
the letter from the Fire Marshal dated January 21, 2021, attached hereto as Exhibit B, the Zoning
Officer’s letter dated January 28, 2021, attached hereto as Exhibit C, the letter from the McMahon
Associates, the Borough Transportation Engineer dated June 1, 2021 attached hereto as Exhibit D,
the Utility Engineers Review letter relating to electric services dated June 7, 2021, attached hereto

as Exhibit E, the comments of the Montgomery County Planning Commission dated March

17,2021 and attached hereto as Exhibit F, the Hatfield Borough Zoning Ordinance, the Hatfield

1753150-1



00450-0242 7.15.2021

Borough Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance, and the conditions of plan approval

stated herein.

1. By letter dated Februaryl, 2021, Lenape Valley Engineering, on behalf of the
Applicant, requested waivers from the Subdivision and Land Development
Ordinance before Preliminary approval and after consideration, and a
recommendation from the Hatfield Borough Planning Commission that the
waivers are in the public interest, as well as a finding that the following waivers
are warranted due to the hardship imposed on this unique property:

a. §22- 410 & 412 — a waiver from providing clear sight triangles on each new
driveway, due to the inability to provide such spacing due to the constrained
dimensions of the site and the low traffic volume on North Girard Terrace;

b. §22- 108.1.A —a waiver of the requirement to provide the building setback line to
be measured from the edge of the proposed stormwater management easement and
rather to allow the building setback line ‘to be measured from the property line as
adequate rear yard areas has been provided for each unit on the plan; and

c. §26-123. B(2) and B(4) — a waiver to allow for a different stormwater volume
management design in view of the existing soil with limited infiltration capacities
so long as the resulting design meets with the approval of the Borough Engineer\,
since testing has revealed an inability of the soil to infiltrate the stormwater and
the proposed system has been designed to significantly reduce the peak rate post-

development on the site.

2. Subdivision and Land development approval is specifically conditioned on the

Applicant demonstrating any and all required outside agency approvals,

2

1753150-1



00450-0242 7.15.2021

175315041

including, but not limited to, PENNDOT, DEP, MCCD, and any other required

state or local agency. Proof of Sewage Facilities Planning approval from the DEP

shall be provided.
Final Subdivision Approval is likewise conditioned upon the Applicant

demonstrating approval of its utility plans by the North Penn Water
Authority and Hatfield Borough and Hatfield Township Municipal Authority
regarding sewage, and approval of the Borough if any public street will be .
disturbed by the construction, and exhibiting signed and funded agreements with
the North Penn Water Authority and Borough and payment of all tapping and
connection fees necessary for water, sewer and electric service before final plans
are recorded.
Final approval is conditioned upon the following:
a) The stormwater management report must be revised to comply with
the Borough Engineer’s Bursich Associates Review Letter number
3 dated June 8, 2021.
b) Prior to a building permit being issued, the existing sanitary sewer
lateral shall be televised, and a copy of the video provided to the
Borough. If the existing lateral is not SDR-26 PVC in good
condition, as determined by the Borough, it shall be replaced with
new SDR-26 PVC pipe up to and including its connection to the
sewer main. Televising of the existing pipe will not be required if

the developer agrees to replace the pipe.



00450-0242 7.15.2021

¢) A design of the new ADA-compliant handicap curb ramp at the
intersection of Roosevelt Avenue and North Girard Terrace shall be
provided for approval with the Grading Permit application.

d) Plan approval will require expeditious removal of the existing
buildings. If the buildings will not be removed immediately, a

~ financial guarantee must be posted for its removal.

e) A right-of-way arc with a radius of 15 feet shall be illustrated on
the Record Plan and offered for dedication to Hatfield Borough at
the intersection of Roosevelt Avenue and North Girard Terrace. A
legal description of the area shall be provided for review.

f) The Developer will comply with the McMahon letter
recommendation dated June 1, 2021 request to trim the existing tree
to improve the site distances along Roosevelt Avenue due to the
horizontal curve in the roadway.

4. Final approval requires that Plans in a form acceptable to the Borough Engineer
must be recorded at the Montgomery County Recorder of Deeds office in accordance with the
Municipalities Planning Code prior to the start of any construction on site. At that time, the
Applicant is required to provide the Borough with 4 copies of full-size paper copies of the final
complete plan set for signature; 2 CDs with PDF version of all plans and design reports; and 2
CDs with AutoCAD files of all plan drawings prior to recording. The Applicant agrees to provide
the Borough with two paper copies of the Recorded plans (with signatures and stamps) and a copy
of the recording receipt prior to construction. After construction, the Applicant must agree to

submit as-built plans once construction is complete and provide the Borough with two paper

1753150-1



00450-0242 7.15.2021

copies and two of CDs with PDFs and AutoCAD files of the final as-built conditions once the

Borough Engineer approves the as-built plan.

5. Final Approval requires that the Applicant execute a Developer’s agreement with
Hatfield Borough in which the Applicant shall obligate itself to complete all the public
improvements, including but not limited to, stormwater management facilities, sidewalks,
pavement restoration and striping, curbing, required landscaping, erosion and sedimentation
control requirements and any other public improvement shown on the plans as being constructed
in accordance with Borough criteria and specifications, as well as to secure completion of the said
required improvements by posting satisfactory financial security as required by the Pennsylvania
Municipalities Planning Code.

6. Final approval requires an acceptable plan for maintenance of all detention basins
and stormwater drainage facilities on the site, and will require appropriate stormwater maintenance
agreements prepared by the Borough Solicitor to be recorded with the Plans and Developer’s
agreement, at the Montgomery County Recorder of Deeds’ office against each of the lots affected
by a stormwater facility.

7. Final approval shall be conditioned upon payments of the Borough’s reimbursable
expenses related to the project, sewage tapping fees, as well as appropriate traffic and stormwater
fees, if applicable.

8. Under the Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code, the Applicant has the right
to accept or reject conditions imposed by the Borough Council upon an approval. In the absence
of an appeal or a notice of rejection of conditions filed in writing within thirty days from the date
of this Resolution, the conditions set forth herein shall be deemed to have been accepted by the

Applicant. If the Borough receives a written notice of an appeal or a written rejection of the

1753150-1



00450-0242 7.15.2021

conditions set forth herein within thirty days from the date of this Resolution, however, then all
waivers shall be deemed to have been automatically rescinded and this Resolution, shall be deemed
to be a Denial of Final Approval for failure to comply with the Hatfield Subdivision and Land
Development Ordinance and the conditions stated above.
9. This Resolution also approves the request of the Applicant to have each unit be given a
Girard Avenue street address, which the Borough will help facilitate with the United States Post
Office.

Approved at a duly advertised public meeting of the Borough Council on the date

above with Council Members, WOITMAN KPEHTL STENENS  0)uf0

voting “Aye” and g voting “Nay.”

HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL

By: WW

JOYN H. WEIERMAN, PRESIDENT

ATTEST:

Dbl G730 i

MICHAEL J. DEFINIS, BOROUGH SECRETARY

Approved this 21 st day of July, 2021.

Robert L. Kal III, Mayor
Borough of Hatfield

1753150-1



4. Old Business:
D. Codification



5. New Business:
A. Small Wireless Ordinance Update



450-007; 9.29.2021

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL WILL HOLD
A HEARING AND THEREAFTER CONSIDER THE ADOPTION OF AN ORDINANCE
OF HATFIELD BOROUGH, MONTGOMERY COUNTY, COMMONWEALTH OF
PENNSYLVANIA, ADDING A NEW CHAPTER 17 “REGULATION OF SMALL
WIRELESS FACILITIES" SPECIFICALLY ADDING PERMISSIONS REQUIRED BY
ACT 50 OF 2021 TO ALLOW SMALL WIRELESS FACILITIES WITHIN THE
RIGHTS OF WAY OF HATFIELD BOROUGH, PROVIDING REGUYLATIONS
THEREFOR, AND PERMITS AND FEES; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE
DATE AT A PUBLIC MEETING TO BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2021
AT 7:30 PM AT THE HATFIELD MUNICIPAL BUILDING AT 401 SOUTH MAIN
STREET IN HATFIELD, PA. A SUMMARY OF THE ORDINANCE FOLLOWS. THE
FULL TEXT MAY BE EXAMINED DURING BUSINESS HOURS AT THE BOROUGH
OFFICES, LOCATED AT 401 SOUTH MAIN STREET IN THE BOROUGH OR AT
THE OFFICE OF THE REPORTER NEWSPAPER AT 307 DERSTINE AVE.,
LANSDALE, PA 19446, AS WELL AS AT THE MONTGOMERY COUNTY LAW
LIBRARY AT THE MONTGOMERY COUNTY COURTHOUSE, LOWER LEVEL,
NORRISTOWN, PA 19404-0311. INTERESTED PARTIES ARE WELCOME TO
ATTEND AND BE HEARD. THOSE REQUIRING SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS
SHOULD CONTACT THE BOROUGH MANAGER MICHAEL DEFINIS IN ADVANCE
OF THE HEARING.
The purpose of the Ordinance is to update and revise the Borough’s Code of Ordinances to add a
new Chapter 17 regulating small wireless facilities to be placed in the Borough’s rights of way
pursuant to Act 50 of 2021, a state statute that requires municipalities to allow small wireless
facilities within the rights of way owned by the municipality and provide enforcement by the
Hatfield Borough Code Officer. The draft Ordinance provides for an application process and fees
and notice that violating the Ordinance may result in penalties; and provides an effective date,
severability clause and a repealer clause, specifically saving those parts of the zoning ordinance
that are not inconsistent with Act 50 of 2021.

CATHERINE M." KATE" HARPER, ESQ. HATFIELD BOROUGH SOLICITOR

1784637-1



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF HATFIELD BOROUGH, MONTGOMERY COUNTY,
PENNSYLVANIA, ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES AND REQUIREMENTS
PERTAINING TO THE IMPLEMENTATION OF ACT 50 OF 2021 AND REGULATING
SMALL WIRELESS FACILITIES TO BE PLACED WITHIN THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-
WAY.

> WHEREAS, the General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has enacted
the Small Wireless Facilities Deployment Act, Act of June 30, 2021, P.L. 232, No. 50 (“Act 50”),
with an effective date of August 29, 2021; and

WHEREAS, Act 50 authorizes the Borough of Hatfield (the “Borough”) to adopt
ordinances that comply with Act 50 and requires that the Borough amend existing ordinances as
necessary to comply with Act 50; and

WHEREAS, the Borough has determined it to be in the best interests of the health, safety,
and welfare of the residents of the Borough to enact certain provisions related to the regulation of
Small Wireless Facilities pursuant to Act 50 and to repeal existing ordinances that are inconsistent
with Act 50.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED AND ENACTED, and it is hereby ordained
and enacted by the Council of the Borough of Hatfield Borough, Montgomery County,
Pennsylvania, as follows:

SECTION 1: REQUIREMENTS.

The Code of the Borough of Hatfield Borough is hereby amended by adding a new Chapter
17, entitled “Regulation of Small Wireless Facilities” which shall read as follows:

§ 1-1: Purpose

In the exercise of its police powers and pursuant to the authority granted to the Borough
under Act 50, the Borough has jurisdiction to regulate uses of the Right-of-Way. In addition the
Borough owns certain poles for signage and electrical facilities which serve important purposes
and which are located within the Rights-of-Way. The purpose of this Ordinance is to provide the
Borough with a process for managing, and uniform standards for acting upon, requests for the
placement of Small Wireless Facilities within the Right-of-Way consistent with the Borough’s
obligation to promote the public health, safety, and welfare; to manage the Right-of-Way and
Borough facilities located within the Right of Way; and to ensure that the public’s use is not
obstructed or disturbed by the use of the Right-of-Way for Small Wireless Facilities. The Borough
recognizes the importance of wireless telecommunications facilities to provide high-quality
communications and internet access services to residents and businesses within the Borough. The
Borough also recognizes its obligation to comply with applicable federal and state laws regarding

1784598-1



the placement of wireless telecommunications facilities in the Right-of-Way including, without
limitation, the Telecommunications Act of 1996, 47 U.S.C. § 151, ef seq., and Act 50, 53 P.S. §§
11704.1 — 11704.11. This Ordinance shall be interpreted consistent with those provisions.

§ 1-2: Definitions

For the purposes of this Ordinance, the terms below shall have the meanings given herein.
When not inconsistent with the context, words used in the present tense include the future tense,
words in the plural include the singular, and words in the singular include the plural.

“Accessory Equipment” means any equipment serving or being used in conjunction with a Small
Wireless Facility or Wireless Support Structure, including but not limited to utility or transmission
equipment, power supplies, generators, batteries, cables, equipment buildings, cabinets, and
storage sheds, shelters, or similar structures.

“Antenna” means telecommunications equipment that transmits and receives electromagnetic
radio signals used in the provision of all types of wireless telecommunications services.

“Applicable Codes” means all applicable federal and state laws, regulations and standards that
comply with Act 50. The term shall also include all ordinances, resolutions, or policies of the
Borough regulating:

(1) Uniform building, fire, electrical, plumbing, or mechanical codes adopted by a
recognized national code organization or local amendments to those codes enacted solely
to address imminent threats of destruction of property or injury to persons.

(2) Local zoning, land use, streets and sidewalks, Right-of-Way and permitting ordinances
or other local rules or regulations that comply with Act 50.

“Applicant” means a Communications Service Provider that submits an Application.

“Application” means a formal request, including all required and requested documentation and
information, submitted by an Applicant to the Borough for a Wireless Permit.

“Borough” means the Borough of Hatfield, Montgomery County, Pennsylvania.

“Borough’s Designee” means the person(s) or entity(s) selected by the Borough as responsible
for initial processing of the Application if any.

“Communications Service Provider” means any of the following:

(1) A cable operator as defined in section 602(4) of the Cable Communications Policy Act
of 1984 (Public Law 98-549, 47 U.S.C. § 522(5)).

1784598-1



(2) A provider of information service as defined in section 3(20) of the Communications
Act of 1934 (48 Stat. 1064, 47 U.S.C. § 153(24)).

(3) A telecommunications carrier as defined in section 3(44) of the Communications Act
of 1934 (48 Stat. 1064, 47 U.S.C. § 153(51)).

(4) A Wireless Provider.

“Collocate” or “Collocation” means to install, mount, maintain, Modify, or replace Small
Wireless Facilities on an existing Utility Pole or other Wireless Support Structure with the
permission of the owner thereof.

“FCC” means the Federal Communications Commission.

“Historic District or Building” means a building that is or a group of buildings, properties or sites
that are:

(1) Listed in the National Register of Historic Places or formally determined eligible for
listing by the Keeper of the National Register.

(2) Determined to be eligible for listing by the Keeper of the National Register of Historic
Places who has been delegated the authority by a Federal agency to list properties and
determine their eligibility for the National Register of Historic Places in accordance with
section VL.D.1.a.i-v of the Nationwide Programmatic Agreement for Review Regarding
the Section 106 National Historic Preservation Act Review Process as specified under 47
CFR Pt. 1, App. C (relating to Nationwide Programmatic Agreement Regarding the Section
106 National Historic Preservation Act Review Process).

(3) Marked as a historical site by the Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission
pursuant to 37 Pa.C.S. (relating to historical and museums).

(4) Within a historic district created pursuant to the act of June 13, 1961 (P.L. 282, No.
167), entitled “An act authorizing counties, cities, boroughs, incorporated towns and
townships to create historic districts within their geographic boundaries; providing for the
appointment of Boards of Historical Architectural Review; empowering governing bodies
of political subdivisions to protect the distinctive historical character of these districts and
to regulate the erection, reconstruction, alteration, restoration, demolition or razing of
buildings within the historic districts.”

“Micro Wireless Facility” means a Small Wireless Facility that:

1784598-1

(1) Does not exceed two cubic feet in volume; and

(2) Has an exterior Antenna no longer than 11 inches.



“Modification” or “Modify” means the improvement, upgrade or replacement of a Small Wireless
Facility or an existing Utility Pole that does not substantially change, as defined in 47 CFR
1.6100(b)(7) (relating to wireless facility modifications), the physical dimension of the Small
Wireless Facility or Utility Pole.

“Municipal Pole” means a Utility Pole owned, managed, or operated by or on behalf of the
Borough.

“Person” means a natural person, firm, partnership, company, association, trust, corporation, or
other legal entity. The singular shall include the plural, the plural shall include the singular; and
the masculine shall include the feminine and the neuter, whatever appropriate.

“Right-Of-Way” means the area on, below or above a public roadway, highway, street, sidewalk,
alley, utility easement or similar property. The term does not include a Federal interstate highway.

“Small Wireless Facility” means the equipment and network components, including Antennas,
transmitters, and receivers, used by a Wireless Provider that meet the following qualifications:
(1) Each Antenna associated with the deployment is no more than three cubic feet in
volume.

(2) The volume of all other equipment associated with the Wireless Facility, whether
ground-mounted or pole-mounted, is cumulatively no more than 28 cubic feet. Any
equipment used solely for the concealment of the Small Wireless Facility shall not be
included in the calculation of equipment volume under this paragraph.

“Technically Feasible” means that, by virtue of engineering or spectrum usage, the proposed
placement for a Small Wireless Facility or its design or site location can be implemented without
a material reduction in the functionality of the Small Wireless Facility.

“Utility Pole” means a pole or similar structure that is or may be used, in whole or in part, by or
for telecommunications, electric distribution, lighting, traffic control, signage or a similar function
or for Collocation. The term includes the vertical support structure for traffic lights but does not
include Wireless Support Structures or horizontal structures to which signal lights or other traffic
control devices are attached.

“Wireless Facility” is defined as follows:

(1) Equipment at a fixed location that enables wireless service between user equipment and
a communications network, including any of the following:

(a) Equipment associated with Wireless Services.

1784598-1



(b) Radio transceivers, Antennas, coaxial or fiber optic cables, regular and backup
power supplies, or comparable equipment, regardless of technological
configuration.

(2) The term includes a Small Wireless Facility.
(3) The term does not include any of the following:

(a) The structure or improvements on, under or within which the equipment is
Collocated.

(b) The coaxial or fiber optic cables that are not immediately adjacent to or directly
associated with a particular Antenna.

(c) Satellite dishes or similar facilities.

“Wireless Infrastructure Provider” means a person authorized by the Pennsylvania Public
Utility Commission to provide telecommunications service in this Commonwealth that builds or
installs wireless communication transmission equipment, Wireless Facilities or Wireless Support
Structures but is not a Wireless Services Provider.

“Wireless Permit” or “Permit” means a permit issued by the Borough pursuant to this Ordinance
and authorizing the placement or Modification of a Small Wireless Facility of a design specified
in the permit at a particular location within the Right-of-Way, and the placement or Modification
of any existing Wireless Support Structure to which the Small Wireless Facility is proposed to be
attached.

“Wireless Permittee” or “Permittee” means the lawful holder of a Wireless Permit.
“Wireless Provider” means a Wireless Infrastructure Provider or a Wireless Services Provider.

“Wireless Services” means services, whether at a fixed location or mobile, using a licensed or
unlicensed spectrum, provided to the public using Wireless Facilities.

“Wireless Services Provider” means a person or entity which provides Wireless Services.

“Wireless Support Structure” means a freestanding structure, including a Utility Pole, Municipal
Pole, or other existing or proposed freestanding structure that could support the placement or
installation of a Wireless Facility if approved by the Borough.

8 1-3: Scope

A. Applicability. Unless otherwise exempted, every Applicant who wishes to place a
Small Wireless Facility in the Right-of-Way or modify an existing Small Wireless Facility in the
Right-of-Way must obtain a Wireless Permit under this Ordinance.

1784598-1



B. Exempt Facilities. The Borough shall not require an Application for the following

unless the work involves excavation, closure of a sidewalk, or closure of a vehicular lane in which
case a Permit shall still be required:

(1) Routine maintenance or repair work.

(2) The replacement of Small Wireless Facilities with Small Wireless Facilities that are
substantially similar or the same size or smaller and still qualify as a Small Wireless
Facility.

The exemptions from Applications provided for herein shall not relieve the party performing such
work from compliance with the permitting or application requirements that may otherwise apply
pursuant to the Applicable Codes of the Borough including, but not limited to, permits for
excavation-related work.

§

1-4: Applications for Small Wireless Facilities

1784598-1

A. Application Process.

€8 Small Wireless Facilities shall be treated as a permitted use in all areas of the
Borough, except underground districts as established and designated by the Borough from
time-to-time, and shall be reviewed by the Borough for conformity with all Applicable
Codes.

(2)  Applications for Small Wireless Facilities shall be submitted to the Borough. All
Applicants shall submit both a paper copy and an electronic copy (in a searchable format)
of any Application, as well 'as any amendments or supplements to the Application or
responses to requests for information regarding an Application. An Application is not
complete until both the paper and electronic copies are received and the applicable fee has
been paid.

(3) A single Applicant seeking to Collocate is permitted to submit a consolidated
application for Collocation of up to 20 Small Wireless Facilities. An Applicant, however,
may not submit more than one consolidated or 20 single Applications for Collocated Small
Wireless Facilities in a 30-day period. If the Borough receives more than one consolidated
Application or 20 single Applications within a 45-day period, then the applicable
timeframe for processing applications specified in this Ordinance shall be extended by 15
days.

(49)  Applications are public records that may be subject to disclosure under the
Pennsylvania Right-to-Know Law. The Applicant must designate any portions of the
Application materials that it reasonably believes contain proprietary or confidential
information by clearly and conspicuously marking each portion of such materials
accordingly. If the Borough determines that the information is subject to disclosure, such



1784598-1

determination shall be conclusive. If the Borough determines that a right-to-know request
asks for proprietary or confidential information regarding a Small Wireless Facility, then
the Borough shall notify the relevant Applicant within five (5) days of receiving said
request pursuant to the Right-to-Know Law. The Applicant and Borough shall use all
reasonable efforts to coordinate a response pursuant to the Right-to-Know Law. If the
Applicant determines that the requested information is considered confidential or
proprietary information as defined by the Right-to-Know Law, or that any other exemption
applies, then the Applicant shall notify the Borough within five (5) days of it receiving
notification from the Borough. If the Applicant requests that the Borough deny a request
pursuant to the Right-to-Know Law, then the Applicant shall be required to enter into an
agreement with the Borough indemnifying the Borough for any and all legal expenses
incurred by the Borough as a result of any challenge to the denial.

(5) Applicant must pay an application fee for each Application or consolidated
Application pursuant to a fee schedule adopted by the Borough as amended from time-to-
time by resolution or otherwise. Unless amended by Resolution, Applicarit shall pay:

(a) Five hundred ($500.00) dollars for an Application seeking approval for no more
than five Collocated Small Wireless Facilities and $100 for each Collocated Small
Wireless Facility beyond five.

(b) One thousand ($1,000.00) dollars for an Application seeking approval of a
Small Wireless Facility that requires the installation of a new or replacement Utility
Pole. ;

Application fees are non-refundable and will not be returned to the Applicant even where
Applicant chooses not to proceed with construction or installation of the Small Wireless
Facility.

(6) In addition to the Application process set forth herein, Applicant shall be
responsible, as may be required by law, to obtain any other governmental or regulatory
permits and approvals required for the installation or Modification of a Small Wireless
Facility. The Applicant shall demonstrate that the owner of the Wireless Support Structure
has agreed to its use. The Borough shall not be liable as a result of accepting an Application
or issuing a Permit in the event that an Applicant is prevented from placing and/or
maintaining its Small Wireless Facility pursuant to this Ordinance.

@) Applications for Small Wireless Facilities shall include the following:
€)) Full and complete payment of all applicable Permit Application fees.

(b) A completed Application form, to the extent the Borough may adopt the
same from time-to-time, signed by an authorized representative of the Applicant
and made subject to all standard Permit conditions specified in this Ordinance.



1784598-1

(©) In the absence of an Application form, Applicant shall submit an
Application packet consisting of a cover letter and all required supporting
documentation. The Applicant shall detail the location of the proposed site(s), all
equipment and Accessory Equipment being proposed as part of the Small Wireless
Facility, and shall certify that the Applicant has included all information required
by the Borough and by all Applicable Codes. The Application packet shall be
signed by an authorized representative of the Applicant. The cover letter shall also
include the Applicant’s name (including any corporate or trade name), and the
name, address, email address, and telephone number of a local representative
responsible -for theApplication. If the -Applicant is-a Wireless-Infrastructure
Provider, the name and contact information for all Wireless Service Providers that
will use the proposed Small Wireless Facility must be provided. Applicant shall
also self-certify subject to 18 Pa.C.S. § 4904 that the filing and approval of the
Application is required by the Wireless Provider to provide additional capacity or
coverage for Wireless Services.

(d)  Applicant’s construction plans and drawings including, but not limited to, a
description of the required work and renderings of the proposed Small Wireless
Facility and the proposed site. Said plans and drawings shall show all equipment
being proposed as part of the Small Wireless Facility, detailed site plans showing
the location of the Small Wireless Facility, and details regarding proposed
construction and/or excavations, if any. Photo simulations depicting the Small
Wireless Facility from at least three locations near the proposed site shall also be
included.

1) If the Small Wireless Facility is proposed for Collocation on an
existing or replacement Utility Pole or Wireless Support Structure that
currently supports existing attachments, the depiction shall show the
location and dimensions of all such attachments.

(ii)  Ifthe proposed Small Wireless Facility will be installed on a new or
replacement Ultility Pole or Wireless Support Structure, the depiction shall
include the color, dimensions, material, location, and type of Utility Pole or
Wireless Support Structure proposed.

(i)  Applicant’s construction plans and drawings shall also comply with
and include any information required by the Borough’s Wireless Facilities
Design Manual.

(e) The manufacturer and model, proposed location, and physical dimensions,
including weight and volume, of each piece of equipment proposed as part of the
Small Wireless Facility.



1784598-1

® A written certification by a structural engineer licensed in the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania confirming that the proposed Small Wireless
Facility and Wireless Support Structure are structurally sound and shall not
endanger public health and safety.

(8) A seal and signature of a professional engineer, licensed in the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and certifying compliance with all local, state, and
federal laws and regulations applicable to the proposed Small Wireless Facility,
including applicable standards for radiofrequency emissions.

(h)  Certification of the Application’s compliance with all requirements of this
Ordinance.

@) Proof that the Applicant has mailed to the owners of all property within 150
feet of the proposed Small Wireless Facility a notice that the Applicant is
submitting an Application to the Borough for placement or Modification of a Small
Wireless Facility in the Right-of-Way, which notice must include:

(i) the proposed location of the Small Wireless Facility, and

(ii) a description and scale image of the proposed Small Wireless Facility
consistent with that contained in the Application.

G) A detailed request for and, explanation of the justification in support of, any
waiver requested from the requirements of this Ordinance.

&) Where an Application is made to install a Small Wireless Facility with a
new Utility Pole, the Application must include sufficient information to
demonstrate that an Applicant cannot meet the service reliability and functional
objectives of the Application by Collocating on an existing Utility Pole or
Municipal Pole instead of installing a new Utility Pole. To demonstrate this
requirement, the Applicant may submit with its Application a certification that it
has made this determination in good faith and shall also provide a supporting
documented summary of the basis for the determination. The Applicant’s
determination in this regard shall be based on whether the Wireless Provider can
meet the service objectives of the Application by Collocating on an existing Utility
Pole or Municipal Pole on which:

(i) the Applicant has the right to Collocation;

(i) the Collocation is Technically Feasible and would not impose
substantial additional cost; and



(iii) the Collocation would not obstruct or hinder travel or have a negative
impact on public safety.

An Application shall not be administratively complete unless all of the required
elements set forth above are included in the Application.

(8)  Timing of Application Review.

(a) Within 10 business days of receiving an Application, the Borough will
determine and notify the Applicant in writing whether the Application is
incomplete. If the Borough determines that an Application is incomplete, the
written notice will specifically identify the information not included with the
Application. The time for the Borough to process the application shall restart on the
date the Applicant provides all of the information required to complete the
Application. The processing deadline may be tolled or extended by a written
agreement of the Applicant and the Borough. Receipt of an Application may occur
on any business day of the Borough.

(b)  The Borough shall process Applications on a nondiscriminatory basis and
Applications shall be deemed approved if the Borough fails to approve or deny the
Application within 60 days of receipt of a complete Application to Collocate and
within 90 days of receipt of a complete Application to replace an existing Utility
Pole or install a new Utility Pole with Small Wireless Facilities attached. A Permit
associated with an Application deemed approved under this subsection shall be
deemed approved if the Borough fails to approve or deny the Permit within seven
business days after the date of filing the Permit Application with the Borough unless
there is a public safety reason for the delay. An Applicant shall provide written
notice to the Borough within 72 hours of when it discovers that a deemed approval
has occurred. Written notice may be received by USPS or courier.

(c) Where the Borough denies an Application because of defects found therein, the
Applicant may cure the deficiencies identified by the Borough and resubmit the
Application within thirty (30) days of receiving the written basis for the denial. No
Permit Application fee is required for an Application resubmitted pursuant to this
section. Following resubmission, the Borough shall approve or deny the
Application within thirty (30) days of the resubmission date. An Applicant shall
not be entitled to more than one submission.

&) Once approved, the Applicant shall be required to coordinate installation of the
Small Wireless Facility to result in the least interference with the public use of the Right-
of-Way as possible

B. Placement. Small Wireless Facilities and Accessory Equipment shall be located
so as not to cause any physical or visual obstruction to pedestrian or vehicular traffic, create safety

10

1784598-1



hazards to pedestrians and/or motorists, or to otherwise inconvenience public use of the Right-of-
Way as determined by the Borough in its sole discretion.

€. Deadlines for Completion. Any Permittee granted a Permit pursuant to this
Ordinance for purposes of Collocation, Modification, or replacement of a Small Wireless Facility,
including installation of a new Wireless Support Structure with a Small Wireless Facility attached
shall complete the construction work that is the subject of said Permit within one year of the date
the Permit is issued. The Borough and any Applicant or Permittee may agree in writing to extend
the period of construction for a period of greater than one year.

D. Compensation for Right-of-Way Use. The holder of any Permit issued for a
Small Wireless Facility pursuant to this Ordinance shall pay the Borough an annual fee for use and
occupancy of the Right-of-Way. The fee shall be established pursuant to a fee schedule adopted
by the Borough as amended from time-to-time by resolution or otherwise. Unless amended by a
Resolution, the fee shall be $270 per Small Wireless Facility and $270 per new Utility Pole to be
used with a Small Wireless Facility.

The Permittee and/or owner of each Small Wireless Facility shall be invoiced for the first annual
fee on the date the Permit is issued, prorated based on the proportion of the calendar year then
remaining. Subsequent invoicing shall be prospective and occur each January. Said invoices shall
be paid within thirty (30) days of receipt thereof. Any unpaid invoice shall be subject to interest
accruing on the unpaid amount at eighteen percent (18%) per annum beginning on the 31%t day
from the date of invoice until paid.

E, Design Guidelines and Aesthetic Requirements. Small Wireless Facilities shall
be designed, installed, operated, and maintained in compliance with all design guidelines, aesthetic
requirements, or concealment measures adopted or amended by the Borough from time-to-time.
Such requirements, if any, are contained in the Wireless Facilities Design Manual, a copy of which
shall be kept on file in the Borough office. Applicant’s design shall comply with all other
Applicable Codes of the Borough including the Borough’s Zoning Ordinance. The Wireless
Facilities Design Manual may be amended by resolution from time-to-time by a resolution of the
Borough Council.

§ 1-5: General Requirements

A. Compliance.

1) The Small Wireless Facility Applicant shall submit proof of compliance with all
Applicable Codes, including but not limited to Act 50 and those established by the FCC,
as part of any complete Small Wireless Facility Application.

2 If such Applicable Codes are modified, the Permittee of the Small Wireless Facility
shall bring such Small Wireless Facility into compliance with the modified Applicable
Codes within three (3) months of the effective date of such Applicable Codes unless a

11

1784598-1



1784598-1

different compliance term is required by the controlling state or federal agency. Failure to
bring such Small Wireless Facilities into compliance shall constitute grounds for
revocation of a Permit and the removal of the Small Wireless Facility at the Permittee’s
expense.

(3)  All Small Wireless Facilities shall meet or exceed all applicable standards set forth
by the state or federal government, as well as any applicable industry standard. In case of
conflict, the most stringent requirements shall prevail. All necessary certifications shall be
obtained by the Applicant or Permittee, as applicable, and shall be provided to the Borough.

©)) Small Wireless Facilities shall be installed and Modified in a manner that:

(a) Ensures that placement of Small Wireless Facilities on existing structures is
within the tolerance of those structures.

(b) Ensures that the Applicant’s or Permittee’s use does not inconvenience the
public, interfere with the primary uses of the Right-of-Way, or hinder the ability of
the Borough or other government entities to improve, modify, relocate, abandon,
or vacate the Right-of-Way or any portion thereof, or to cause the improvement,
modification, relocation, vacation, or abandonment of facilities in the Right-of-
Way.

(c) Ensures that the Applicant’s or Permittee’s use does not obstruct, endanger, or
hinder travel or public safety within a Right-of-Way, damage or interfere with other
utility facilities located within a Right-of-Way or obstruct or interfere with the legal
use of the Right-of-Way by the Borough or other utility.

(d) Ensures that the Borough bears no risk or liability because of the installation or
Modification of a Small Wireless Facility.

6)) Small Wireless Facilities in the public Right-of-Way requiring the installation of a
new Wireless Support Structure shall not be located immediately in front of any building
entrance or exit.

(6)  All Small Wireless Facilities shall comply with all applicable requirements of the
Americans with Disabilities Act and all Applicable Codes, including those applicable to
streets and sidewalks.

(7)  No Small Wireless Facility shall be installed, Modified, placed, operated, repaired,
or maintained in a manner that causes, or is likely to cause, interference with the Borough’s
infrastructure, equipment, or services. Said infrastructure, equipment, and services
include, but are not limited to, the Borough's traffic signal system, public safety radio
system, electric distribution system, or Borough communications system. If a Small
Wireless Facility causes such interference, then the Permittee, at its own expense, shall

12



take all steps necessary to immediately correct and eliminate the interference. The
Borough may terminate a Permit for a Small Wireless Facility based on such interference
if the interference is not remedied by the Permittee.

B. Attachment to Municipal Structures. Subject to the requirements and processes
of this Ordinance, Act 50, and all Applicable Codes, Applicants are permitted to Collocate Small

Wireless Facilities on Municipal Poles. The Borough will allow Collocation on Municipal Poles
using the process required under Act 50 and Applicable Codes unless:

(i) The Small Wireless Facility would cause structural or safety deficiencies to the
Municipal Pole, in which case the Borough and Applicant shall work together for any make-ready
work or modifications or replacements that are needed to accommodate the Small Wireless Facility
as otherwise required in this Ordinance; or

(ii) The Borough has reserved the space on the Municipal Pole for other public purposes.

The Borough shall allow the Collocation of Small Wireless Facilities to structures owned
by the Borough in the following preferred order, from most to least preferable:

(1)  Traffic signage poles without traffic signals;
(2)  Traffic signage poles with traffic signals;
(3)  Non-decorative light poles;

(4)  Telecommunications poles;

(5)  Electric distribution poles;

(6) . Decorative light poles.

If the Small Wireless Facility Applicant is proposing the Collocation of a Small Wireless Facility
on a lower preference structure, it shall be a condition to the approval of the Application that the
Small Wireless Facility Applicant provide evidence that Collocation on a higher preference
structure or Wireless Support Structure owned by a third-party is not Technically Feasible. The
cost of Collocating on a higher preference structure or Wireless Support Structure shall not be
included in evaluating Technical Feasibility. Collocation of a Small Wireless Facility on a
Municipal Pole shall not create or vest in any Applicant, Wireless Provider, or Wireless Service
Provider any ownership or property rights in such Municipal Poles except as expressly provided
for in this Ordinance or pursuant to applicable law.

This Ordinance shall not be construed to require the Borough to construct, retain, extend, place, or
maintain any Municipal Pole or other municipal facilities not needed for the Borough’s own utility
service requirements.

13

1784598-1



An Applicant has no right to object to the Borough granting permission to any party regarding use
of a Municipal Pole.

Where applicable, an Applicant’s Collocation of a Small Wireless Facility on a Municipal Pole
shall be placed and maintained at all times in accordance with the requirements, specifications,
rules and regulations of the latest edition of the National Electrical Safety Code and subsequent
revisions thereof, any governing authority having jurisdiction, this Ordinance, and any reasonable
design standards and rules governing pole attachments in the Borough as the Borough may adopt
from time-to-time, and shall be otherwise consistent with generally accepted industry standards.

If requested by the Borough, each Small Wireless Facility Collocated on a Municipal Pole shall
be identified at all tithes by an identifying marker/band/tag stating the name of person holding the
Permit. The marker/band/tag shall, at a minimum, (a) be reasonably durable under the typical
weather conditions in the area and (b) have coloring unique to the person holding the Permit. If
the Borough elects to require marking/banding/tagging by the Wireless Permittee, the Borough
shall provide the Permittee information concerning the type and color of marker/band/tag to be
used in satisfying the requirements of this section. Such markers/bands/tags shall also be capable
of being read unaided from the ground by an adult of typical height and vision.

Make-ready work shall be performed as specified in Section 1-8 of this Ordinance.

C. Insurance. Each Permittee and any person who owns or operates a Small Wireless
Facility shall annually provide the Borough with a certificate of insurance, in a form satisfactory
to the Borough Solicitor, evidencing general liability coverage in the minimum amount of
$1,000,000 per occurrence and property damage coverage in the minimum amount of $1,000,000
per occurrence covering the Small Wireless Facility and naming the Borough as an additional
insured on each insurance policy. All Permits issued for location of a Small Wireless Facility
pursuant to this ordinance shall be deemed to be revoked in the event said insurance policy is
cancelled, expires, or ceases to exist.

D. Outdated Equipment. As part of the construction, Modification, or replacement
of a Small Wireless Facility, the Permittee shall remove any obsolete or abandoned equipment
from the Wireless Support Structure or Utility Pole.

E. Weather. All Small Wireless Facilities shall be designed to withstand the effects
of wind, ice, water, and heat to the standard designed by the American National Standards Institute
as prepared by the engineering departments of the Electronics Industry Association, and
Telecommunications Industry Association (ANSI/TIA-222, as amended), or to the industry
standard applicable to the structure.

F. Inspection Reports. All Permittees shall submit inspection reports to the Borough
upon request to ensure structural integrity and compliance with all Applicable Codes. Inspection
reports shall be delivered to the Borough by the Permittee within thirty (30) days of request by the
Borough. These inspection reports may include, but are not limited to, descriptions of routine

14

1784598-1



maintenance or repair work, and descriptions of the physical degradation of a Small Wireless
Facility.

G. Maintenance. The following maintenance requirements shall apply:

(1)  All Small Wireless Facilities shall be fully automated and unattended on a daily
basis and shall be visited only for maintenance, repair, or replacement.

2) Such maintenance shall be performed to ensure the upkeep of the Small Wireless
Facility, to promote the health, safety, and general welfare of the Borough’s residents, and
to remain compliant with all Applicable Codes.

(3)  All maintenance activities shall utilize nothing less than the best available
technology in accordance with the applicable standard in the industry for preventing
failures and accidents. Maintenance logs shall be timely provided to the Borough upon
request.

H. Historic Districts. No Small Wireless Facility may be located within seventy-five
(75) feet of any property, or on a building or structure that is listed on either the National or
Pennsylvania Registers of Historic Places, or eligible to be so listed under the Pennsylvania
Historic District Act, located within a Historic District, or is included in the official historic
structures list maintained by the Borough.

§ 1-6: Discontinuance.

A. Process. If use of a Small Wireless Facility and/or its dedicated Accessory
Equipment is to be discontinued, the Permittee shall provide written notice to the Borough of its
intent to discontinue use and the date when the use shall be discontinued. A Small Wireless Facility
and/or dedicated Accessory Equipment not operated for a period of twelve (12) months shall be
considered abandoned. Discontinued or abandoned Small Wireless Facilities, or portions of Small
Wireless Facilities, shall be removed as follows:

(1)  All abandoned or unused Small Wireless Facilities and Accessory Equipment shall
be removed within ninety (90) days of the cessation of operations at the site or receipt of
notice that the Small Wireless Facility has been deemed abandoned by the Borough unless
a time extension is approved by the Borough.

(2)  Ifthe Small Wireless Facility or Accessory Equipment is not removed within ninety
(90) days of the cessation of operations at a site, or within any longer period approved by
the Borough, the Small Wireless Facility and/or associated facilities and equipment may
be removed by the Borough and the cost of removal assessed against the owner of the Small
Wireless Facility regardless of the owner’s or operator’s intent to operate the Small
Wireless Facility in the future.

15

1784598-1



(3)  The Borough reserves the right to pursue all available remedies under the law to
ensure removal of the Small Wireless Facility and restoration of the site at the expense of
the Permittee. Any delay by the Borough in taking action shall not invalidate the Borough’s
right to take action.

With respect to a Small Wireless Facility Collocated on a Municipal Pole, the Borough may
abandon a Municipal Pole upon thirty (30) days’ notice to the Permittee. Permittee must remove
or transfer all Facilities from abandoned Municipal Poles within the same thirty (30) days unless
granted additional time by the Borough. The Borough will not unreasonably withhold consent of
such request for additional time. The Permittee shall post a decommissioning bond in the amount
of one hundred percent (100%) of the total cost of decommissioning with the Borough. If the
Borough has no attachment(s) on said Municipal Poles and the Permittee has not removed or
transferred its Facilities therefrom, the Borough may, in its sole discretion: (1) revoke the Permit
for that Municipal Pole; or (2) remove the Small Wireless Facilities at the Permit holder’s expense,
with no liability falling on the Borough except in the case of gross negligence or willful
misconduct. '

B. Required Discontinuance. The Borough may require the discontinuance of a
Small Wireless Facility if:

(1)  The Borough determines that the space is needed for public purpose; or
2) The Borough desires to decommission the Utility Pole; or

(3)  The Borough designates the area of the subject Utility Pole or Wireless Support
\Structure as an underground district.

Within ninety (90) days of receipt of a notice of discontinuance from the Borough, the
Permittee shall remove the Small Wireless Facility and any Accessory Equipment, including the
Utility Pole and any Wireless Support Structures if the Permittee’s Small Wireless Facilities and
Accessory Equipment are the only Wireless Facilities on the Utility Pole. The Borough shall not
be liable to the Permittee or Applicant as a result of requiring the discontinuance of a Small
Wireless Facility in the event that an Applicant or Permittee is prevented from placing and/or
maintaining its Small Wireless Facility pursuant to this section.

§ 1-7: Indemnification.

Each person that owns or operates a Small Wireless Facility shall, at its sole cost and
expense, indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Borough, its elected and appointed officials,
employees and agents, at all times against any and all claims for personal injury, including death,
and property damage arising in whole or in part from, caused by or connected with any act or
omission of the person, its officers, agents, employees or contractors arising out of, but not limited
to, the construction, installation, operation, maintenance or removal of the Small Wireless Facility.
Each person that owns or operates a Small Wireless Facility, or holds a Permit issued pursuant to

16

1784598-1



this Ordinance, shall defend any actions or proceedings against the Borough in which it is claimed
that personal injury, including death, or property damage was caused by the permitting,
construction, installation, operation, maintenance, and/or removal of a Small Wireless Facility.
The obligation to indemnify, hold harmless and defend shall include, but not be limited to, the
obligation to pay judgments, verdicts, injuries, liabilities, damages, reasonable attorneys’ fees,
reasonable expert fees, court costs and all other costs of indemnification.

Further, a Permittee shall repair all damage to the Right-of-Way or any other land so
disturbed, directly caused by the activities of the Permittee or the Permittee's contractors and return
the Right-of-Way in as good of condition as it existed prior to any work being done in the Right-
of-Way by the Permittee. If the Permittee fails to make the repairs required by the Borough within
30 days after written notice, the Borough may perform those repairs and charge the Permittee the
reasonable, documented cost of the repairs plus a penalty of $500. In the event an Applicant or
Permittee has failed to pay any costs invoiced by the Borough for repair work or penalties charged
pursuant to this section, the Borough shall net process any further Applications unless or until the
Applicant or Permittee has paid the amount assessed for the repair costs and the assessed penalty.
Any unpaid invoice shall be subject to interest accruing on the unpaid amount at eighteen percent
(18%) per annum beginning on the 315 day from the date of invoice until paid.

§ 1-8: Standard Permit Conditions.

All Wireless Permits under this Ordinance are issued subject to the following minimum
conditions:

(1) The Permittee shall at all times maintain compliance with this Ordinance and all
Applicable Codes.

(2) The Permittee shall at all times maintain with the Borough accurate contact information
for the Permittee and all Wireless Service Providers making use of the Small Wireless
Facility, which shall include, at minimum, a name, phone number, mailing address, and
email address for at least one natural person.

(3) The Borough shall have the right to support, repair, disable, or remove any components
of a Small Wireless Facility if the Small Wireless Facility threatens imminent harm to

persons or property.

(4) The Permittee shall undertake all reasonable efforts to avoid undue adverse impacts to
adjacent persons, properties and/or uses that may arise from the construction, operation,
maintenance, modification, or removal of the Small Wireless Facility.

(5) The Permittee shall maintain all Small Wireless Facilities and any associated structures
in a good condition and in a neat and clean manner in accordance with all approved
Application documents and conditions of approval.

17

1784598-1



1784598-1

(6) The Permittee shall retain full and complete copies of all Permits, Applications, and
other regulatory approvals issued in connection with the facility, which includes without
limitation all conditions of approval, approved plans, resolutions, and other documentation
associated with the Permit or regulatory approval. In the event the Borough cannot locate
any such full and complete Permits, Applications, or other regulatory approvals in its own
official records, and the Permittee fails to retain full and complete records in the Permittee’s
files, any ambiguities or uncertainties that would be resolved through an examination of
the missing documents will be presumed resolved against the Permittee.

(7) Every Small Wireless Facility shall at all times comply with applicable FCC regulations
governing radio frequency emissions, and failure to comply with such regulations shall be
treated as a material violation of the terms of the permit.

(8) Make-Ready Work. For any Municipal Pole Collocation Application, the Borough
shall provide a good faith estimate for any make-ready work, including any make ready
engineering costs, necessary to enable a Municipal Pole to support the requested
Collocation by a Wireless Provider, including pole replacement, if necessary, within 60
days after receipt of a complete Application. The Borough shall also provide the Applicant
with a schedule for completing any make-ready work. Make-ready work, including pole
replacement, shall be completed within 60 days of written acceptance of the good faith
estimate by the Applicant. Any unpaid invoice sent by the Borough to an Applicant for fees
for make-ready work shall be subject to interest accruing on the unpaid amount at eighteen
percent (18%) per annum beginning on the 31st day from the date of invoice until paid.

(9) Future Use. The Borough may reserve space on an existing Municipal Pole for future
public uses in a documented and approved plan as adopted at the time an Application is
filed. A reservation of space shall not preclude Collocation, the replacement of an existing
Utility Pole or the installation of a new Utility Pole. If the replacement of a Municipal Pole
is necessary to accommodate Collocation and the reserved future use, the Wireless Provider
shall pay for the replacement Municipal Pole and the Municipal Pole shall accommodate
the future use.

(10) An Applicant or the Applicant's designee shall ensure that a contractor or
subcontractor performing construction, reconstruction, demolition, repair, or maintenance
work on a Small Wireless Facility deployed under this Ordinance meets and attests to all
of the following requirements:

(a) Maintain all valid licenses, registrations or certificates required by the Federal
Government, the Commonwealth or the applicable local government entity that is
necessary to do business or perform applicable work.

(b) Maintain compliance with the act of June 2, 1915 (P.L. 736, No. 338), known
as the Workers' Compensation Act, the act of December 5, 1936 (2nd Sp.Sess.,
1937 P.L. 2897, No. 1), known as the Unemployment Compensation Law, and

18



1784598-1

bonding and liability insurance requirements as specified in the contract for the
project.

(c) Has not defaulted on a project or been suspended on a project by the Federal
Government, the Commonwealth, or a local government entity within the previous
three years.

(d) Has not been convicted of a misdemeanor or felony relating to the performance
or operation of the business of the contractor or subcontractor within the previous
10 years.

(¢) Has completed the United States Occupational Safety and Health
Administration's 10-hour safety training course or similar training sufficient to
prepare workers for any hazards that may be encountered during their work on the
Small Wireless Facility.

() Prior to the commencement of work, the contractor and/or subcontractor shall
provide the Borough with a certificate of insurance, in a form satisfactory to the
Borough Solicitor, evidencing general liability coverage in the minimum amount
of $1,000,000 per occurrence and property damage coverage in the minimum
amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence covering the Small Wireless Facility and
naming the Borough as an additional insured on each insurance policy. All Permits
issued for location of a Small Wireless Facility pursuant to this ordinance shall be
deemed to be revoked in the event said insurance policy is cancelled, expires, or
ceases to exist.

(g) The contractor and/or subcontractor shall, at its sole cost and expense,
indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Borough, its elected and appointed
officials, employees and agents, at all times against any and all claims for personal
injury, including death, and property damage arising in whole or in part from,
caused by or connected with any act or omission of the contractor and/or
subcontractor, its officers, agents, employees or contractors arising out of, but not
limited to, the construction, installation, operation, maintenance or removal of the
Small Wireless Facility. The obligation to indemnify, hold harmless and defend
shall include, but not be limited to, the obligation to pay judgments, verdicts,
injuries, liabilities, damages, reasonable attorneys’ fees, reasonable expert fees,
court costs and all other costs of indemnification.

(11) A Permit issued pursuant to this Ordinance shall not be assigned or otherwise
transferred without the prior written approval of the Borough.

(12) Approval of an Application shall authorize the Applicant to, subject to the Permit
requirements and the Applicant's right to terminate at any time, operate and maintain Small
Wireless Facilities and any Accessory Equipment on a Ultility Pole covered by the Permit

19



for a period of not less than five years, which shall be renewed for two additional five-year
periods if the Applicant is in compliance with the criteria set forth in Act 50 or Applicable
Codes consistent with Act 50 and the Applicant has obtained all necessary consent from
the Utility Pole owner.

§ 1-9: Revocation of Permit

The Borough may revoke a Wireless Permit for failure to comply with the conditions of
the Permit or Applicable Codes after providing adequate notice to the Permittee and allowing the
Permittee an opportunity to cure any noncompliance. Within 60 days of suspension or revocation
of a Permit due to noncompliance with Act 50 or other Applicable Codes, the Applicant shall
remove the Small Wireless Facility and any Accessory Equipment, including the Utility Pole and
any Wireless Support Structures if the Applicant’s Small Wireless Facilities and Accessory
Equipment are the only Wireless Facilities on the Utility Pole. Within 90 days of the end of a
Permit term or an extension of the Permit term, the Applicant shall remove the Small Wireless
Facility and any Accessory Equipment, including the Utility Pole and any Wireless Support
Structures if the Applicant’s Small Wireless Facilities and Accessory Equipment are the only
Wireless Facilities on the Utility Pole.

§ 1-10: Restoration

If a Permittee removes or relocates a Small Wireless Facility from the Right-of-Way under
this Ordinance, the Permittee must restore the Right-of-Way to its prior condition in accordance
with Borough specifications. If the Permittee fails to make the restorations required by this
Ordinance, the Borough at its option may do such work. In that event, the Permittee shall pay to
the Borough, within 30 days of billing thereof, all costs and expenses incurred by the Borough in
restoring the Right-of-Way. Any unpaid invoice shall be subject to interest accruing on the unpaid
amount at eighteen percent (18%) per annum beginning on the 315 day from the date of invoice
until paid.

8 1-11: Violations and Penalties

A. This Ordinance shall be enforced by the Code Officer of the Borough. If the Code
Officer determines that any prion has violated this chapter, then a notice of violation shall be issued
by the Code Officer describing the violation and a time period for compliance. If the person to
whom the notice of violation is issued fails to comply as directed, the Code Officer shall order the
discontinuance of noncompliance and may pursue any other enforcement remedies available at
law or equity.

B. Any person who has violated the provisions of this chapter, upon being found liable
therefor in a civil enforcement proceeding commenced by the Borough, shall pay a judgment of
not more than $600 plus all court costs, including reasonable attorney fees incurred by the Borough
as a result thereof. No judgment shall commence or be imposed, levied or payable until the date
of the determination of a violation by the Magisterial District Judge. If the defendant neither pays

20

1784598-1



nor timely appeals the judgment, the Borough may enforce the judgment pursuant to the applicable
rules of civil procedure. Each day that a violation continues shall constitute a separate violation.

C. Nothing herein contained shall prevent the Borough from taking such other lawful action
as is necessary to prevent or remedy any violation.

SECTION 2. SEVERABILITY

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or word of this Ordinance is for any
reason held to be illegal or invalid by any court or administrative agency of competent jurisdiction,
such illegal or invalid portion or provision shall be severable and shall not affect or impair any
remaining portion of this Ordinance and Chapter, which shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 3. REPEALER

All provisions of previous Ordinances of the Borough which are contrary to this Ordinance
are expressly repealed only to the extent to which they are inconsistent with this Ordinance and/or
Act 50.

SECTION 4. SAVINGS CLAUSE

In all other respects, all ordinances, codes, resolutions, rules, and regulations of the
Borough shall remain as previously adopted, approved, enacted, and ordained. It is declared as
the intent of the Borough that nothing in this Ordinance shall be interpreted as inconsistent with
Act 50 and/or discriminatory in nature.

SECTION S. POLICE POWERS/IMMUNITY

The Borough, by granting any permit or taking any other action pursuant to this Ordinance,
does not waive, reduce, lessen, or impair the lawful police powers vested in the Borough under
applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations. Nothing herein shall be construed to mean
that the Borough intends to limit or waive any rights or immunities arising out of any applicable
governmental immunity laws or statutes. This Ordinance, and the terms and provisions set forth
herein, are intended solely for the purposes set forth herein, and are expressly not intended to
provide any tort or contractual remedy to any third party beyond those provided by statutes and
beyond those set forth herein.

SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE

This Ordinance shall take effect immediately.

21

1784598-1



ENACTED, ORDAINED, AND APPROVED this day of October , 2021.

ATTEST:

Michael J. DeFinis, Borough Secretary

Robert L. Kaler, Mayor

1784598-1

22

Borough Council of the Borough of Hatfield,
Montgomery County, Pennsylvania

By:

John H. Weierman, Borough Council
President



5. New Business:
B. ZHB Legal Notice



Legal Notice
Hatfield Borough
Zoning Hearing Board

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Zoning Hearing Board of Hatfield
Borough will hold a hearing on October 27, 2021 at 7:00 p.m., at the Hatfield
Borough Building, 401 South Main Street, Hatfield, Pennsylvania, to hear the
Application of Bob Weimer for (1) an appeal to the denial of a building permit; and
(2) a request for a Variance from Section 27-2108.1.F of the Zoning Ordinance to
permit the construction of a new roof structure with columns located 2' from the
property line and a roof overhang located 6" from the property line when a 12 feet
aggregate side yard and a 2 feet minimum side yard setback per side is required.

The Property is currently owned by Weimer Real Estate, LLC and is located
at 64 E. Lincoln Avenue, further identified as Parcel No. 09-00-01336-00-5, and is
within the CC-Core Commercial Zoning District of the Borough.

The Board will also consider any other business that comes before it in due
course. '

All interested parties may attend this hearing and will be given an opportunity
to be heard.

Persons with disabilities who wish to attend the hearing and require auxiliary
aid, service or other accommodation to participate in the hearing should contact

Hatfield Borough at 215-855-0781.

By: /s/ Eric C. Frey
Eric C. Frey, Esquire

To be published two times — “The Reporter”: October 13, 2021 and October 20,
2021.

One Proof of Publication Required — send to Eric C. Frey, Esquire
Invoice to be sent to Michael J. DeFinis, Borough Manager



6. Action Items:



7. Next Meeting Monday,
November 1, 2021 7:00PM



8. Motion to Adjourn



